MEETING OF THE RECENTS UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA WEDNESDAY, MARCH 8, 1950 10:00 a.m.

The Regents of the University of Oklahoma met in regular session on Wednesday, March 8, 1950, at 10:00 a.m. in the office of the President of the University. The following were present: President Emery, presiding; McBride, Shepler, White, Benedum, Morgan. Absent: Regent Shartel.

The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, February 8, were approved.

Regent Emery requested that the following statement be made a part of the minutes, and that a copy be given to the press:

STATEMENT OF DON EMERY UPON HIS RETIREMENT FROM THE BOARD OF RECENTS

"I know you will accord me the privilege of saying a few words at this meeting which, but for a few days, terminates my service as a regent of the University and marks the end of my tenure as President of the Board.

"My service has been completely enjoyable and entirely beneficial to me. I have been doing the things I have enjoyed doing in association with enjoyable persons—with persons who have appreciated that the vigor—ous expression of dissenting views indicates the essential nature of our political culture and gives to unanimity its essential virtue.

"I leave your deliberations with the hope that all the people of this state will someway, somehow learn soon that in every comparative sense they are not now providing through taxation and by appropriation sufficient funds to pay just salaries to teachers and to insure adequate facilities so necessary if their children and their children's children are to have the opportunity to acquire the education they deserve."

The Chair announced the next order of business at this the Annual Meeting to be the election of the following officers for the ensuing year -- to wit: President, Vice-President, Secretary.

Nominations for the office of President were called for.

Regent Benedum nominated Joe McBride. No other nominations being made, upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, Regent McBride was elected President of the Board and was declared duly elected to the said office.

Nominations for the office of Vice-President were called for.

Regent White nominated Ned Shepler. No other nominations being made, and upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, Regent Shepler was elected Vice-President of the Board and was declared duly elected to the said office.

Nominations for the office of Secretary were called for.

Regent Shepler nominated Emil R. Kraettli. No other nominations being made, upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, Emil R. Kraettli was elected Secretary of the Board and was declared duly elected to the said office.

President Cross read the following statements from Joe N. Hamilton concerning the location of the Cerebral Palsy Institute.

(Excerpt from a letter by Lawrence J. Linck, executive director of the National Society for Crippled Children, to State Secretaries) 2-24-50

"In looking ahead, the Executive Committee of the National Society has taken the position that it is the expressed policy of the National Society to recommend and to emphasize that where units for the diagnosis and treatment of cerebral palsy are established, they be made integral parts of medical schools and teaching hospitals, to supplement the advancement of diagnosis and treatment by an active educational program for the undergraduate type of student, hospital entrants and residents, and the practitioner in general."

and

MEMORANDUM

Oklahoma City 2. Oklahoma

March 6, 1950

"To: Board of Regents, University of Oklahoma From: Joe N. Hamilton, Secretary

"The 1949 Oklahoma Legislature enacted new legislation pertaining to the care and treatment of crippled children. The act now provides for the establishment of a Professional Advisory Committee of six. Three of these are selected from a list of nine names submitted to the Commission for Crippled Children by the Oklahoma State Medical Association.

"The present composition of the Professional Advisory Committee is as follows:

"Dr. D. H. O'Donoghue, Oklahoma City, Chairman -- physician
H. D. Helland, Tulsa -- State director of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield Plans

Miss Celeste Kemler, R. H., Ada -- hospital administrator

Dr. Thurman Shuller, McAlester -- physician

Dr. Wayne A. Starkey, Altus -- physician

Dr. A. W. Wallace, Chickasha -- dentist

"At the last meeting of the Professional Advisory Committee, held February 26, 1950, the following motion was made by Dr. Starkey, seconded by Dr. Shuller, and carried unanimously:

2

"That the Professional Advisory Committee recommend to the University Board of Regents that the proposed building for the treatment of cerebral palsied patients be made an integral part of the Oklahoma Medical School and its teaching hospitals; that it be located on the Medical School campus; and that the building be constructed and used as a treatment and not as a custodial institution."

/s/ Joe N. Hamilton, Secretary Professional Advisory Committee."

Following a discussion of the matter the Secretary was authorized and directed to advise Mr. Hamilton of the action of the Regents at the February 8 meeting with the further information that one of the factors in the decision to locate the institute on the Norman campus was that the Spastic Commission stated ten acres of ground would be required and this would not be available on the Medical School campus.

In accordance with authorization by the Regents at the February 8 meeting President Cross submitted a report on negotiations for a definite proposal to refinance existing dormitory indebtedness and obtain new funds to construct a dormitory system to house 848 men in buildings similar to those of the Women's Quadrangle. The terms of the proposal were shown in the agenda, together with a letter under date of February 28, 1950 from LEE HIGGINSON CORPORATION, 40 Wall Street, New York 5, New York, and the amortization schedule for a bond issue in the amount of \$5,525,000.

President Cross reported that he had received a few communications from individuals, and the Interfraternity Council in opposition to the plan to require all freshmen men to live in University operated dormitories. The Interfraternity Council, through its president, Walter Gray, requested a hearing on the matter.

Following a discussion, and at the suggestion of Regent McBride, it was agreed that President Cross gather further information, including the number of freshmen men enrolled, total male enrolment, occupancy of present facilities, and any other data available; also that before final action is taken the Interfraternity Council be granted a hearing.

President Cross was authorized to answer the letters on behalf of the Regents.

President Cross recommended that Sorey, Hill and Sorey, the Architects on the Women's Quadrangle buildings, be named Architects on the Men's Dormitory project using the same basic structural system, for a fee of 3% of the construction cost.

Approved on motion by Regent McBride.

President Cross reported that the Fluor Corporation, Los Angeles, California, who were awarded the contract for the construction of the Cooling Tower had completed the project and submitted the following resolution and recommended its adoption:

"Whereas, the Director of the Physical Plant of the University of Oklahoma reports that the contract of the Fluor Corporation, Los Angeles, California, for the construction of the induced draft cooling tower for the new Power Plant of the University of Oklahoma, dated April 14, 1948 (and processed for expenditure purposes by University of Oklahoma Purchase Order No.11044-49), has been completed in compliance with the plans and specifications,

Be it Resolved by the Board of Regents of the University of Oklahoma that the cooling tower is accepted as complete and the contract is hereby terminated."

Regent Benedum moved, and it was unanimously voted to adopt the resolution.

President Cross discussed with the Regents the use of funds allocated to the University of Oklahoma from the \$36,000,000 bond issue. Following is his statement on the building program:

"The University should have about a million and three quarters more than is available at this time to meet most urgent needs at the University. The first three buildings in our program are: completion of the geology building, Graduate Education Building, and the Home Economics Building. We hope to get these underway soon.

"We have more than 2300 students enrolled in Geology and that is more than the total enrolment in the University not many years past.

"It is imperative that the University provide facilities for the College of Education, presently housed in the old Carnegie Library; the University's most important contacts in the state are through the schools.

"There is not a high school in the state, located in a city with a population of 10,000, that does not have better facilities for Home Economics than the University has. There is a great need for training in home management and every girl in the University should have the opportunity to enrol in such courses.

"There is a desperate need for additional space for Chemistry. The Chemistry Department has only recently been conditionally accredited after the temporary building was moved to the campus. Due to the use of chemicals, explosives, and Bunsen burners the building is a great fire hazard. Even with this building there is a great lack of laboratory space.

"I would not be fair if I did not state the need for Chemistry is much greater than for either law or journalism. Guy James and Dial Currin, both members of the State Regents' Board visited the campus recently and they were impressed with the need for additional facilities in Chemistry. At the meeting of the State Regents John Rogers brought up the matter. Being a lawyer he is interested in the School of Law.

but he indicated the need in Chemistry is great. He stated he is not familiar with Journalism but he was convinced the need is not as great as for Chemistry. All members of the State Regents expressed the same opinion.

"I would suggest no action be taken at this time except on the three buildings listed; that we ponder the problem as to what should be done with the balance available to the University. We can provide a great deal of space for several departments in the new wing of the stadium.

"It is my responsibility to the institution and to the State to recommend to this board that if sufficient funds are not available to meet the needs in Chemistry and some of the other needs, after careful consideration, I would want to recommend to this board that the Chemistry Department be taken care of before Journalism and Law, unless the Oklahoma Press Association comes through with its amount, and that the balance of the money be used for Chemistry. In view of the needs in Chemistry I would recommend that Journalism and Law be moved below Chemistry in the building program."

President Cross made a financial report on the Sugar Bowl game, showing receipts and disbursements. He stated he would have all of the details shortly and that a complete statement would be sent to each Regent.

He discussed also the business management of the Athletic Department and the relationship of the department to the University Administration. He submitted the following recommendations for improvement of the business administration of the intercollegiate athletic program;

- (1) That intercollegiate athletic activities be designated as an auxiliary enterprise of the University of Oklahoma, under the title "Athletic Department."
- (2) That all income from intercollegiate athletics be deposited in the Comptroller's Office in appropriate accounts, in accordance with the University's general policies for handling the funds of auxiliary enterprises.
- (3) That the Comptroller of the University be responsible for determining procedures to be used in the Athletic Department for accounting, control of cash, disbursements, and control of and accounting for all tickets to intercollegiate events.
- (4) That all business activities of the Athletic Department, including ticket sales, bookkeeping, budget preparations, handling of cash receipts, requisitioning of supplies, and so on, be consolidated in an office identified as the Athletic Business Office, under the management of an Athletic Business Manager who also serves as Athletic Ticket Manager.

- (5) That the position of Athletic Council Treasurer be abolished, and that all cash receipts of the Athletic Office be deposited daily in the Comptroller's Office, the cash receipts in the Athletic Business Office to be handled by a cashier responsible to the Athletic Business Manager for general duties but responsible to the Comptroller for all procedures in handling of cash.
- (6) That the Athletic Business Office staff include a bookkeeper responsible to the Athletic Business Manager for general office duties but responsible to the Comptroller's Office for accounting procedures.
- (7) That the Athletic Business Manager be responsible to the Athletic Director for general duties in planning and executing the business aspects of the Intercollegiate Athletics program, and be authorized to act for the Athletic Director on business matters requiring action during absence of the Athletic Director.
- (8) That the Athletic Director be responsible to the President of the University for all phases of Intercollegiate Athletics, including business management, the line of responsibility for business management to be through the Financial Vice-President of the University.

Regent McBride moved, and it was unanimously voted to approve the President's recommendations.

Recess at 12:00 to attend the BMOC luncheon, in the Union Building and met again in the President's office at 2:00 p.m.

President Cross reported that Carl Mason Franklin has been offered a Sterling Fellowship in the Yale University Law School during the academic year of 1950-51 to do graduate work in international law, and that Mr. Franklin had requested a leave of absence, without pay, in order to accept this fellowship; he expects to complete the residence requirements for the J.S.D. degree, plus a portion of the doctoral dissertation by July, 1951. He recommended that the leave of absence be granted from October 1, 1950 to July 1, 1951.

Approved.

The preliminary plans for the Aeronautical Engineering Building as prepared by William S. Burgett were presented by President Cross. He recommended that the officers of the Board execute a contract for preparation of working drawings and specifications and that the contract be given Reynolds and Morrison, Architects, of Oklahoma City. This firm does not have any other University work and one member (Morrison) is an OU man.

On motion by Regent Benedum, seconded by Regent White, the recommendation was unanimously adopted.

Dean Everett requests, in order that the building construction work contemplated from capital funds from the bond issue for the School of Medicine and University Hospitals may get under way, architects be selected to prepare the plans and specifications. He requested allocations by the State Regents for the amounts as indicated, and the appointment of architects agreed upon with Mr. Kraft and Mr. O'Neil for the projects listed below:

- 1. Neuropsychiatric Addition \$500,000 Coston and Frankfurt Oklahoma City
- 2. Crippled Children's Hospital 320,000 Hudgins, Thompson, Ball and Addition Associates, Oklahoma City
- 3. Medical School Addition 250,000 Hudgins, Thompson, Ball and Associates, Oklahoma City
- 4. Laundry, Shops, and Expansion 214,000 Parr and Aderhold of Food Service Oklahoma City
- 5. Remodeling of Obstetrical Suite Winkler and Reid (From Remodeling and Modernization) Oklahoma City

It is the recommendation of a faculty committee that the Neuropsychiatric Addition be incorporated in the same structure as the Out-Patient Department, which is now being designed by Coston and Frankfurt.

The firm of Hudgins, Thompson, Ball and Associates are designing the addition to the Medical School. A portion of the funds provided under the bond issue are needed for financing the Medical School Addition.

Due to the satisfactory manner in which the firm of Hudgins, Thompson, Ball and Associates have handled the Medical School work, it is recommended they be given the work on the Crippled Children's Hospital Addition.

Due to the satisfactory manner in which Parr and Aderhold have handled the Nurses' Home Addition it is recommended they be given the work on the Laundry and Shops.

Two years ago the firm of Winkler and Reid designed an addition to the Main Hospital and certain alterations in the existing building. In this work they became familiar with the complicated details related to remodeling of the Obstetrical Suite. It is recommended they be given a contract on this work.

President Cross recommended approval of architects as listed, and it was voted, on motion by Regent Benedum, that the recommendation be approved.

President Cross submitted the detailed plans and specifications covering the construction of the addition to the School of Nursing Building. These plans have incorporated the needs of the School of Nursing and have been approved by the United States Public Health Service and the State Department of Health. President Cross recommended approval of the plans and specifications as submitted by Dean Everett, and that bids be requested on March 28, 1950.

On motion by Regent White the recommendation was approved.

President Cross stated that Bruce Goff had been requested to do some work on preliminary plans for the University Chapel with the understanding that he would be paid something for his work. Vice President Franklin and Vice President Cate, in conference with Mr. Goff agreed on a payment of \$800, most of which was for materials and amounts paid out by Mr. Goff for student help employed on the project. They recommend payment of \$800 even though it appears likely that the University will not be able to make use of the plans and the elaborate model he prepared.

President Cross recommended a payment of \$800 to Mr. Goff as settlement for his work on the plans and model of the University Chapel, with the understanding that the plans and model will remain the property of Professor Goff; that if the University ever decides to proceed with the project it will be necessary to enter into a new agreement with him for architectural services.

On motion by Regent McBride the recommendation was approved.

President Cross called attention to his letter under date of February 10 requesting opinions from the Regents on a proposed football game with the University of Pittsburg on October 4, 1952 in Norman, with a return game at Pittsburg in 1953 or 1954. Each member replied in the affirmative and he asked that the minutes record the vote of each Regent.

Approved.

Recommended approval of contracts in the following athletic events during the current school year:

BASEBALL:

Texas Christian University, Fort Worth, March 22, 1950
Texas A. and M. College, College Station, March 23, 1950
Oklahoma A. and M. College, Stillwater, April 25 and May 17, 1950
Norman, May 5 and 8, 1950

INDOOR TRACK:

Oklahoma Baptist University, Norman, January 31, 1950 North Texas State, Norman, February 11, 1950 University of Kansas, Norman, February 18, 1950 University of Nebraska, Lincoln, February 25, 1950

TENNIS:

Denver University, Norman, March 22, 1950 Denver, May 4, 1950

Texas Christian University, Fort Worth, April 4, 1950 Southern Methodist University, Dallas, April 5, 1950 Baylor University, Waco, April 6, 1950 Tulsa University, Norman, April 15, 1950

Tulsa, April 25, 1950

University of Kansas, Lawrence, April 20, 1950 University of Missouri, Columbia, April 22, 1950 University of Colorado, Boulder, May 6, 1950 Colorado A. and M., Fort Collins, May 8, 1950 University of Wyoming, Laramie, May 9, 1950

Approved.

Recommended approval of incidental fee allocations for the Spring Semester of 1949-50 as follows:

	Per	Student
Health Service	\$	5.50
*Student Union		7.25
Oklahoma Daily		1.00
Student Government		.50
*Power Plant		5.50
*Stadium		5.00
•	\$	24.75

*Amounts determined by bond issue requirements

Approved.

Reported the resignation of Mrs. Mamie Reilly, Instructor in Speech, Speech and Hearing Clinic, effective February 17, 1950.

Resignation accepted.

Recommended that Nil H. Kenan, Graduate Assistant in Speech at \$90 per month be appointed Instructor, Speech and Hearing Clinic at \$150.00 a month, 1/2 time, effective February 20, 1950.

Approved.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

Everett P. Truex. Assistant Professor of Business Statistics, leave of absence without pay extended from June 1, 1950 to June 1, 1951.

William Bryan Lee, Painter, Utility Service Unit, leave of absence without pay March 1, 1950 to March 1, 1951.

Margaret M. Letteer, General Duty Nurse, Student Health Service, leave of absence without pay March 1 to May 1, 1950.

William Melvin Wyatt, Boiler Fireman, Utility Service Unit, leave of absence without pay March 1 to June 1, 1950.

Approved.

FACULTY APPOINTMENTS:

Carl C. Branson, Professor in Geology, \$6,000 for 9 months service, effective September 1, 1950.

Carl Rupp Doering, Professor of Biostatistics, Department of Public Health, \$6,500 for 9 months service, effective September 1, 1950.

Yu Why Chen, Associate Professor in Mathematics and Astronomy, \$5,200 for 9 months service, effective September 1, 1950.

Shirley Adams, Teaching Assistant in Violoncello, School of Music, total salary of \$150 for 4 months, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Barbara Barstow, Teaching Assistant in Violin, School of Music, total salary of \$150 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Celia Mae Bryant, Teaching Assistant in Piano, School of Music, total salary of \$800 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Marguerite Ebel, Teaching Assistant in Voice, School of Music, total salary of \$950 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Elizabeth Gaines House, Teaching Assistant in Piano, School of Music, total salary of \$650 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Betty Johnson, Teaching Assistant in Bassoon, School of Music, total salary of \$150 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Hazel Bell Perry, Special Instructor in Social Work, no stipend, 1/3 time, effective February 1, 1950.

Marion Aileen Piggotti, Special Instructor in Social Work, no stipend, 1/3 time, effective February 1, 1950.

Mary Lou Smith, Special Instructor in Social Work, no stipend, 1/3 time, effective February 1, 1950.

William P. Snyder, Teaching Assistant in Trumpet and Cornet, School of Music, total salary of \$250 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Raymond Toubman, Teaching Assistant in Woodwind Instruments, School of Music, total salary of \$500 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

Vaud Ancil Travis, Special Instructor in Adult Education, total salary of \$300 for 4 months service, part time, effective February 1, 1950.

Nat Foster White, Teaching Assistant in Flute, School of Music, total salary of \$150 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Reappointment.

George Yaeger, Teaching Assistant in Horn, School of Music, total salary of \$350 for 4 months service, effective February 1, 1950.

Approved.

GRADUATE ASSISTANTS:

Robert Baine Bailey, Graduate Assistant, University Reading Laboratory, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950 to June 1, 1950.

Carl Edward Bleil, Graduate Assistant in Physics, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Virginia Lynn Bowers, Graduate Assistant in Journalism, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Audrey Anne Davis, Graduate Assistant in Speech, \$90 per month, effective February 20 to June 1, 1950.

Robert Abel DeWolf, Research Scholarship in Graduate College, \$25 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Howard Franklin Goldman, Graduate Assistant, Division of Zoology, University Museum, \$90 per month, part time, effective February 1, 1950.

Edwin Paul Grobe, Graduate Assistant in Modern Languages, \$90 per month for 9 months service, effective September 1, 1950.

Henry C. Holland, Graduate Assistant in Geology, \$45 per month, 1/4 time, effective February 1, 1950 to June 1, 1950.

Thomas Wayne Hurt, Graduate Assistant in Geology, \$45 per month, 1/4 time, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Phelps Kay Manning, Research Scholarship, Graduate College, \$12.50 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Bill R. McMorries, Graduate Assistant in Mechanics and Engineering Metallurgy, \$90 per month for 42 months service, effective January 16, 1950.

Bernard David Meltzer, Graduate Assistant in Petroleum Engineering, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

David Thomas Oakes, Graduate Assistant in Petroleum Engineering, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Harry Leo O'Bryan, Jr., Graduate Assistant in Geology, \$45 per month, 1/4 time, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Jack Austin Reese, Graduate Assistant, School of Journalism, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Harold Martin Richardson, Graduate Assistant in Physics, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Walter Joseph St. Croix, Graduate Assistant in Modern Languages, \$90 per month for 9 months service, effective September 1, 1950.

Anthony Smykal, Jr., Graduate Assistant in Psychology, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Ronald B. Thompson, Graduate Assistant in Geology, \$45 per month, 1/4 time, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Basel B. VanSchuyver, Graduate Assistant, College of Education, \$120 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

John William Weaver, Graduate Assistant, Bureau of Government Research, \$90 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Earl Lee Mills, Graduate Assistant in Geology, \$45 per month, 1/4 time, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

RESIGNATIONS:

Harold Wells Gandy, resigned as Graduate Assistant in Physics, effective February 1, 1950. (Transferred to Research Institute)

George Carl Hale, Graduate Assistant in Petroleum Engineering, resignation effective January 16, 1950.

Max L. Miller, Graduate Assistant in Chemistry, resignation effective January 16, 1950.

Joseph Young Ruth, Graduate Assistant in Psychology, resignation effective February 1, 1950.

Delmar V. Swander, Graduate Assistant, University Reading Laboratory, resignation effective February 1, 1950.

Approved.

SUMMER SCHOOL:

Appointments:

E. Staten Wynne, Assistant Professor in Plant Sciences, \$430 per month for June and July, 1950.

James G. Harlow, College of Education, \$95 per month, 1/4 time, for June and July, 1950.

Lonnie Gilliland, Visiting Professor, College of Education, \$100 per month, 1/4 time, June and July, 1950.

Changes:

William S. Burgett, Instructor in Architecture, change from 1/2 time at \$190 per month to full time at \$380 per month for June and July, 1950.

Bill J. Ball, change from Graduate Assistant at \$90 per month to Field Assistant at \$175 per month for June, July and August, 1950. Geology.

Paul W. Hull, change from Graduate Assistant at \$90 per month to Field Assistant in Geology at \$175 per month for June, July and August. 1950.

Charles L. Caldwell, Assistant Professor, transfer from University School to College of Education, \$380 per month for June and July, 1950.

Resignations:

H. L. Chance, Professor in Plant Sciences, resigned from Summer School.

Approved.

NON-ACADEMIC RESIGNATIONS, TITLE AND SALARY CHANGES:

William R. Holman, Archives Assistant, Division of Manuscripts, University Library, resignation effective February 8, 1950.

Francis C. Pearce, change from Head Resident Counselor at \$75 per month to Assistant Counselor of Men (in charge of housing) at \$200 per month for 12 months service, effective February 1, 1950. Including housing.

Mary Stubbs, Dining Unit Manager, Housing, increase salary from \$185 to \$200 per month and meals on duty, effective February 1, 1950.

Approved.

DEATHS:

President Cross reported the following deaths of members of the faculty in the School of Medicine:

Dr. Harvey O. Randel, Assistant Professor of Ophthalmology, Dr. Randel was a graduate of the Chicago College of Medicine and Surgery and began service on the faculty of the School of Medicine in 1939. He 3434

is survived by his wife and one son. They reside at 524 Northwest Thirty-Ninth, Oklahoma City. He died on February 17, 1950.

Dr. Walter W. Wells, Professor Emeritus of Obstetrics. Dr. Wells graduated from Epworth College of Medicine in 1910, and began service on the faculty of the School of Medicine in 1916. He was given the title of Professor Emeritus upon his retirement from active service in 1945. He is survived by his wife, Dr. Eva Wells who resides at 730 Northeast Nineteenth Street, Oklahoma City. He died on February 14, 1950.

President Cross was asked to write letters on behalf of the Regents extending sympathy to members of the respective families.

President Cross reported that the faculties of the School of Medicine, the School of Nursing and the College of Arts and Sciences have worked out a curriculum which will lead to the degree of Bachelor of Science in Nursing. This provides that the student will complete two years on the Norman Campus with a minimum of 72 hours of credits, and a total of 111 weeks (exclusive of vacation periods) in Oklahoma City for a minimum of 68 credit hours. This will require the addition of only one new course which will have to be added anyway to service the new program of the School of Public Health. This does not eliminate the regular three-year nurses' training course as it is now offered. The curriculum is aimed particularly to raise substantially the qualifications of its nursing instructors and for supervisory positions in nursing. The new curriculum has been approved by the Council on Instruction.

President Cross recommended approval by the Regents and that the President of the University be authorized to submit the proposal to the State Regents for Higher Education.

On motion by Regent White it was unanimously voted to approve the recommendation.

SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL ITEMS:

APPOINTMENTS:

Dr. R. Gibson Parrish, Instructor in Anesthesiology, Clinical Rates for 12 months service, effective February 1, 1950.

Dr. Charles David Bodine, Clinical Assistant in Obstetrics, Clinical Rates, effective March 1, 1950.

Dr. Dick Moss Lowry, Clinical Assistant in Otorhinolaryngology, Clinical Rates, effective February 15, 1950.

Dr. Mark R. Johnson, Director of Health Service, \$5,000 for 12 months service, with meals while on duty and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1. 1950.

Doris Ann Simonton, Laboratory Technician, \$200 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Jack W. Withers, Jr., Photographer, \$250 per month, effective February 6, 1950.

Nellie J. Farmer, General Staff Nurse, University Hospitals, \$200 per month with laundry, permanent evening duty, effective February 1, 1950.

'Minnie Genoway, General Staff Nurse, University Hospitals, \$200 per month with laundry, effective January 23, 1950. Permanent evening duty.

Mayon B. Holmes, General Staff Nurse, \$200 per month with laundry, effective January 20, 1950. Night Duty.

Janell Hubbard, Head Nurse, \$220 per month with laundry, effective February 1, 1950.

TITLE AND SALARY CHANGES:

Dr. James B. Pitts, change from Director of Health Service to Assistant Director. Outpatient and Admitting Departments, effective February 1, 1950.

Miss Lucy Pitts, Laboratory Technician, increase salary from \$191.66 per month to \$216.66 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Irvin F. Chancy, Assistant Cashier, increase salary from \$202.50 to \$225 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Alice Ray Ussery, change from Student Technician at \$50 per month to Laboratory Technician at \$200 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Georgia Patterson, change from Clinical Instructor in Medical Nursing at \$250 per month to Supervisor of the Clinical Instructors in Medical and Surgical Nursing at \$275 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

J. Laverne Wood, change from Secretary, Dietary Department at \$166.66 per month to Cashier at \$225 per month, effective February 13, 1950.

John C. Frazier, Plumber, increase salary from \$200 to \$210 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

I. B. Patton, Plasterer, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$200 to \$210 per month. effective February 1, 1950.

Paul Manek, Carpenter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$210 to \$220 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Arlene McGill, Head Nurse, increase salary from \$210 to \$220 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Katherine Officer, change from General Staff Nurse at \$190 per month to Head Nurse at \$210 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Mary E. Romaine, General Staff Nurse, increase salary from \$190 to \$200 per month. effective February 1, 1950.

Artelle Stiff, Head Nurse, increase salary from \$210 to \$220 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Miss Dorothy P. Tayrien, Nursing Arts Instructor, increase salary from \$240 to \$250 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

James F. White, Painter, increase salary from \$210 to \$220 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

RESIGNATIONS:

Elmer Ridgeway, Jr., Instructor in Obstetrics, resigned February 1, 1950.

Tom Patterson, Photographer, resignation effective February 15, 1950.

Lorene Tollison, Cashier, resignation effective February 15, 1950.

Nina Ruth Barton, Head Nurse, resigned February 6, 1950.

Kathleen Wilkins, Head Nurse, resignation effective February 16, 1950.

Norean A. Flaig, General Staff Nurse, resignation effective February 21, 1950.

Nellie Drye Phariss, General Staff Nurse, resignation effective January 31, 1950.

Louise Young, General Staff Nurse, resignation effective February 20, 1950.

Approved.

President Cross exhibited tentative plans for utilization of space under the stadium by providing classrooms, laboratories, and other facilities. He stated considerable thought had been given to such a project and he recommended that Wright and Selby, the Architects on the Stadium, be employed to work up detailed plans and specifications, and that the President of the Regents be authorized to execute a contract on behalf of the Regents.

On motion by Regent Benedum the recommendation was approved.

Regent Shepler suggested that Mr. Emery draft an appropriate letter or resolution on behalf of the Regents to the members of the family of Lloyd Noble. It was the sense of the Regents that this be done.

Regent Benedum offered the following motion:

"I move that the Board make of record its appreciation and thanks to Don Emery for the outstanding and farsighted leadership which he has rendered as President of the Board of Regents during the year just ended, and for the immense amount of personal time and energy which he has devoted to the office, all of which has inured to the benefit of the University of Oklahoma and the State of Oklahoma."

The motion was unanimously adopted.

At this point Regent Emery escorted Regent McBride to the Chair as the new President of the Board.

President Cross called attention to the Third Annual Achievement Day on April 19, the chief feature of which will be the awarding of the Distinguished Service Citations to five outstanding state citizens. This project is jointly sponsored by the Board of Regents and the Alumni Association. On alternate years each one supplies the toastmaster; this is the year for the Regents. It was agreed that Joe McBride represent the Regents as toastmaster.

At the Regents' meeting on February 8, a committee composed of Regents White, Morgan and Benedum was appointed to make a study with reference to records of students in the School of Medicine. A tabulation of grade reports for each student was supplied each member of the committee by Dr. Homer Marsh, Associate Dean of Students and Chairman of the Admissions Committee. The tabulation showed a comparison of grades for students in the School of Medicine who had done their pre-medical work in the University of Oklahoma with those who had been accepted from other institutions in the State. Regent White reported on a study of the tabulation he had made. It was understood that Dr. Marsh will submit a complete list of admissions for the entering class in September of 1950 when it is completed - about the second week in April. No action was taken by the Regents.

There being no further business the meeting was adjourned at 3:45 p.m.

Emil R. Kraettli, Secretary

NON-ACADEMIC CHANGES NOT SUBMITTED TO REGENTS (See Resolution adopted October, 1948)

APPOINTMENTS:

Rosemary M. Acree, Clerk-Typist, Veterans Liaison Office, \$120 per month for 12 months service, effective February 11, 1950.

Ray Barto, Fireman, Fire Protection Department, \$170 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Eleanor J. Cox, Clerk-Typist, Veterans Liaison Office, \$120 per month, effective February 16, 1950.

James Paul Cunningham, Head Resident Counselor, International House, \$75 per month plus room, 1/2 time, effective February 15, 1950.

Raymond Chester Dragoo, Jr., Architectural Draftsman, Office of the University Architect, \$87.50 per month, 1/2 time, effective February 1, 1950.

Ruth Nolan Dunn, General Duty Nurse, Student Health Service, \$170 per month, effective March 1, 1950 to May 1, 1950.

Eathel Orville Foster, Fireman, Fire Protection Department, \$170 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Mary F. Groh, Registration Clerk, Admissions and Records, \$65 per month, 1/2 time, effective February 1, 1950.

Katheryne Hayes Hamilton, Clerical Secretary, Office of the Director, Physical Plant, \$140 per month, effective February 16, 1950.

Forrest Lee Hayden, Caretaker, Extension Study Center, Short Courses and Conferences, \$75 per month, effective February 16, 1950.

Hazel A. Hill, PBX Operator, Physical Plant, \$130 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Joan Clarice Harrouff, Clerical Secretary, Office of the President, \$140 per month, effective March 6, 1950.

Eileen Sharon Howard, Sales Clerk, Book Exchange, \$120 per month for February, 1950.

James R. Hunt, Junior Accountant, Office of the Comptroller, \$75 per month, 1/2 time, effective February 1, 1950.

Elizabeth Sutton Kappelle, Clerk-Typist, School of Architecture, \$120 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

J. Wesley Kurshildgen, Postmaster, Wilson Center Post Office, \$160 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Doris E. Larson, Clerical Stenographer, Guidance Service, \$130 per month, effective January 28, 1950.

Joy McKinzey Lawrence, General Office Clerk, Office of the Dean, College of Business Administration, \$125 per month, effective February 2, 1950.

Jo Alice Leverett, Library Assistant, University Library, \$120 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Joyce F. Manning, General Duty Nurse, Student Health Service, \$170 per month, effective February 8, 1950.

Mary Moore McFarland, Clerical Stenographer, School of Art, \$130 per month, effective January 23 to June 1, 1950.

Avis Klover Miller, Chief Clerk, Office of the Dean of Students, \$150 per month, effective February 8, 1950.

Wilfred T. Miller, Junior Psychometrist (half time), Psychological Service Center, \$66.66 per month, effective January 18 to June 1, 1950.

Rosemary Myers, General Office Clerk, Statistical Service Laboratory, \$125 per month. effective February 15, 1950.

Granville Clifton Northern, Nurse Aide, Student Health Service, \$100 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Evelyn C. Pena, Clerk-Typist, Veterans Liaison Office, \$120 per month, effective February 16, 1950.

Velma E. Peterson, Costume Assistant, University Playhouse, \$120 per month, effective January 19 to March 16, 1950.

Betty Nugent Pflug, General Office Clerk, Psychological Service Center, \$125 per month, effective February 15, 1950.

Neal T. Putman, Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, \$45 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Dee E. Renshaw, Architectural Draftsman, Office of the University Architect, \$87.50 per month, effective February 1, 1950. 1/2 time.

Rose Marie Shelton, Clerical Secretary, Office of the Director, Physical Plant. \$140 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Jacqueline Holst Shoemaker, Account Clerk, Housing, \$135 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Betty Gregory Siler, Librarian I, University Library, \$150 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Margaret G. Stapelton, Clerical Secretary, Plant Sciences, \$140 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Margaret Scott Steinberger, Clerk-Typist, Employment Service, \$120 per month, effective February 20, 1950.

Robert W. Stout, Flight Instructor, Department of Aviation, \$90 per month, effective February 6, 1950. 1/3 time.

James L. Sullivan, Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, \$45 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Billie Jo O'Dell Sweeney, General Office Clerk, Psychological Service Center, \$125 per month, effective January 30, 1950.

Dixie Lee Talley, Administrative Secretary, University of Oklahoma Foundation, \$170 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Antoinette M. Tatem, Account Clerk, Office of the Comptroller, \$130 per month. effective February 20, 1950.

Henrietta A. Unrah, Clerical Secretary, Psychology Department, \$140 per month, effective February 20, 1950.

Jack E. Van Dewalli, Student Airport Manager, Westheimer Flying Field, \$50 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Elmer A. Vest, Jr., Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, \$45 per month, effective February 17 to June 1, 1950.

Alice Heard Williams, Clerical Stenographer, Public Relations Office, \$130 per month, effective January 26, 1950.

TITLE AND SALARY CHANGES:

Helen Jeanne Blanchard, PBX Operator-Receptionist, Office of the President, increase salary to \$160 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Robert J. Buford, Printer's Helper, Printing Division, University Press, increase salary from \$2600 to \$2720 for 12 months service, effective February 1, 1950.

Martharene J. Byram, change from Clerical Stenographer in Art at \$130 per month on 9 months basis to Clerical Secretary at \$140 per month, effective February 1, 1950, on 12 months basis.

Mary Pat Carver, change from Account Clerk, Office of the Comptroller to Clerical Secretary, University Reading Laboratory, with no change in salary, effective March 1, 1950.

Barbara Chaney, change from Clerk-Typist at \$120 per month to General Office Clerk at \$125 per month, effective February 15, 1950.

Nelda W. Gardner, change from Clerk-Typist, Architecture and Architectural Engineering at \$120 per month to Clerical Stenographer at \$130 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Audrey Dean Grant, change title to Payroll Clerk, Office of the President and increase salary to \$140 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

11

Marion Hall, transfer from Woodrow Wilson Dining Hall as Assistant Dining Unit Manager to Women's Dormitory System, (\$175.00 per month) with no change in salary, effective February 1, 1950.

Ella May Harris, transfer from Women's Dormitory System as Assistant Dining Unit Manager to Dining Unit Manager, Franklin House and Dining Hall, with no change in salary, effective February 1, 1950.

Geraldine Hodges, change from Clerical Stenographer, Architecture and Architectural Engineering at \$130 per month to Clerical Secretary at \$140 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Dorothy M. Holder, change from Clerical Stenographer at \$135 per month to Clerical Secretary, Office of the President at \$145 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Rachael R. Keener, change from Clerical Stenographer, Public Relations Office at \$130 per month to Clerical Secretary, Office of the Dean of Students at \$140 per month, effective January 26, 1950.

Patricia Lampkin, change from Clerk-Typist at \$120 per month to Personnel Clerk at \$140 per month, effective March 1, 1950. Employment Service.

Thelma Louola Myers, Administrative Secretary, Office of the Secretary, increase salary to \$175 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Waymon S. O'Neal, Policeman, Campus Police Department, increase salary from \$160 to \$170 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Constance T. Painter, change from Clerical Stenographer at \$130 per month to Clerical Secretary, Psychological Service Center at \$140 per month, effective February 15, 1950.

Myrtle Parsons, transfer from Woodrow Wilson Post Office to North Campus Post Office with no change in title or salary, effective February 4, 1950.

Roxanne Ray, change from Registration Clerk at \$130 per month to Information Clerk, Admissions and Records at \$135 per month, February 1, 1950.

Katherine V. Rayne, change from Library Assistant, University Library to Nursery Assistant, Home Economics Nursery School and Kindergarten, with no change in salary, effective March 1, 1950.

Josephine Riling, transfer from Franklin House and Dining Hall to Women's Dormitory System with no change in title or salary (Assistant Dining Unit Manager, 1/2 time at \$75 per month and meals), effective February 1, 1950.

Eleanor R. Rogers, Clerical Stenographer, Office of the President, increase salary to \$150 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Opal Thomas, Registration Assistant, Admissions and Records, increase salary from \$150 to \$180 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Nancy Williams, change from General Office Clerk at \$125 per month to Clerical Stenographer, Admissions and Records at \$130 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Margaret Ann Yowell, Library Assistant, University Library, increase salary rate from \$120 to \$130 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

RESIGNATIONS:

Roy Alletag, Student Junior Accountant, Office of the Comptroller, resigned February 1, 1950.

Shelby A. Ayles, Assistant, General Service (Wilson Center Post Office), resigned February 1, 1950.

Grace Harper Cook, Clerical Secretary, University Publications, resigned March 1, 1950.

Billie E. Daugherty, Clerical Secretary, University Reading Laboratory, resigned February 27, 1950.

Tommy Lou Flynn, Clerical Secretary, Psychological Service Center, resigned February 21, 1950.

Phyllis Gallaher, Nurse Aide, Student Health Service, resigned March 1, 1950.

Mildred A. Gassett, General Office Clerk, Psychological Service Center, resigned February 4, 1950.

Lillie Fisher Hornbarger, Office Clerk, Short Courses and Conferences, resigned February 22, 1950.

Arthur G. Johnson, Fireman, Fire Protection Department, resigned February 1, 1950.

George A. Jones, Fireman, Fire Protection Department, resigned February 1, 1950.

Patsy DeMent Jones, Clerical Secretary, Office of the Director, Physical Plant, resigned February 16, 1950.

Bessie H. Lockhart, Clerk-Typist, Veterans Liaison Office, resigned February 12, 1950.

Dorothy S. McDaniel, Personnel Clerk, Employment Service, resigned March 1, 1950.

Mollie Ann Megill, Special Order Clerk, Book Exchange, resigned February 16, 1950.

12

Stuart H. Mong, Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, resigned February 1, 1950.

Beverly Myers, Clerk-Typist, Veterans Liaison Office, resigned February 16, 1950.

Clara V. Nistetter, PBX Operator, resigned March 1, 1950.

Isaac L. Peterson, Caretaker, Extension Study Center, Short Courses and Conferences, resigned February 16, 1950.

Wanda S. Robertson, Clerical Secretary, Office of the Director, Physical Plant, resigned February 16, 1950.

Anna B. Rogach, General Duty Nurse, Student Health Service, resigned February 19, 1950.

Geneva Rogers, Postal Clerk in Charge, North Campus Post Office, resigned February 22. 1950.

Samuel L. Smith, Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, resigned February 17, 1950.

Vera P. Stephenson, Administrative Assistant, Athletic Department, resigned March 10, 1950.

Helen W. Waller, Clerical Secretary, Psychology Department, resigned February 19. 1950.

Charles Edward Williams, Laboratory Assistant, School of Art, resigned February 1, 1950.

Frances P. Wozencraft, Assistant in Home Economics Nursery School and Kindergarten, resigned February 23, 1950.

Billie M. Wright, Charge Ticket Clerk, Book Exchange, resigned February 9, 1950.

SCHOOL OF MEDICINE AND UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS

APPOINTMENTS:

Cora Bawn, Dishmachine Operator, University Hospitals, \$70 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1, 1950.

Maudell Baxley, Dietetic Intern, University Hospitals, \$50 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective January 30, 1950.

Geneva R. Branum, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 14, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August, 1950.

3444

Dr. Bruce H. Brown, Fellow in Pathology, School of Medicine, \$50 per month, effective February 1 to June 30, 1950.

Lela Burdine, Cook's Helper, University Hospital, \$70 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1, 1950.

Jennie M. Byrd, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 17, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

Ida M. Carpenter, Laundress, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 13, 1950.

Simon Dee Cheshier, Building Custodian, \$130 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Annie B. Davis, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

Mary K. Deweese, Laundress, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 7, 1950.

Irene Dittemore, Clerical Assistant, University Hospitals, \$20 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Archie William Foster, Receiving Clerk, University Hospitals, \$135 per month, effective February 6, 1950.

Charles B. Harper, Orderly, University Hospitals, \$110 per month with laundry, effective February 14, 1950; \$120, May.

Ila Mae Hawkins, Laundress, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Shelly T. Higginbotham, Laundryman, University Hospitals, \$130 per month, effective February 3, 1950.

Edith Holmes, Dietetic Intern, University Hospitals, \$50 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective January 30, 1950.

Maxine Hunter, Housekeeper, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 23, 1950.

Laura Eogan, Housekeeper, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 12, 1950.

Ruth Long, Nurse Aide, University Hospital, \$90 per month, effective February 21, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, September.

Marion Currier McBreen, Technician, University Hospitals, \$50.per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Maxie M. Harper, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 14, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

Della H. McLemore, Nurse Aide, University Hospital, \$90 per month, effective February 1, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

George E. Merkley, Jr., Student Assistant, University Hospitals, \$15 per month, effective February 1 to June 1, 1950.

Elaine Lyvere Nibley, General Staff Nurse, University Hospitals, \$190 per month with laundry, effective January 28, 1950.

Noll M. Nicholson, Physio-therapy Aide, University Hospitals, \$135 per month, effective February 15, 1950.

Fredrick Pappan, Orderly, University Hospitals, \$110 per month, effective February 14, 1950; \$120, May.

Grace Ritchie, Clerical Assistant, University Hospitals, \$20 per month, effective February 1 to March 1, 1950.

Barbara McMahon Rotter, Stenographer, University Hospital, \$150 per month, effective February 11, 1950.

Vera Abbott Russell, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 13, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

Mavis Smith, Tray Girl, University Hospitals, \$70 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1, 1950.

Ruby Smith, Tray Girl, University Hospitals, \$70 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1, 1950.

Juanita Sprouse, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$100 per month, effective February 1, 1950; \$110, July, 1950.

Christine Streety, Waitress, Pay Cafeteria, University Hospitals, \$70 per month with meals and laundry of uniforms, effective February 1, 1950.

Maureen Townsend, Clerical Assistant, University Hospitals, \$20 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Louise Van Horn, Clerical Assistant, University Hospitals, \$20 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

John H. Wajdo, Building Custodian, University Hospitals, \$130 per month, effective January 30, 1950.

Velma Rose Wallace, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, \$90 per month, effective February 14, 1950; \$100, March; \$110, August.

TITLE AND SALARY CHANGES:

Perry Ayres, Relief Porter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$75 to \$80 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

G. S. Banks, Carpenter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$180 to \$185 per month, effective February 1, 1950; increase to \$190 per month effective March 1, 1950.

Clarence Bayless, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$25 to \$50 per month. effective March 1, 1950.

Dorothy Brooks, Ward Dietitian, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$175 to \$185 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Nadine Coder, Head Cook, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$160 to \$185 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Willie Evans, Laundress, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$90 to \$95 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Dr. Charles L. Freede, Resident, University School of Medicine, increase salary from \$70 to \$80 per month, effective February 9, 1950.

G. L. Grayson, Carpenter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$175 to \$190 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Joy Hance, Tray Girl, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$70 to \$75 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Mary Jones, change from Orderly to Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, effective February 4, 1950.

Louise Kitch, Tray Girl, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$70 to \$75 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

R. J. Knapp, Painter, increase salary from \$175 to \$190 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Walter Overton Mauldin, Technician, increase salary from \$100 per month, part time to \$150 per month, full time, effective February 1, 1950.

Janice Medford, Dietitians Aide, University Hospital, increase salary from \$90 to \$100 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Dr. Jess E. Miller, Resident, University School of Medicine, increase salary from \$60 to \$70 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

R. A. Scroggins, Carpenter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$185 to \$190 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Mattie Shanks, Pastry Cook, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$180 to \$185 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Alma Stroud, Waitress, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$70 to \$75 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

14

Barbara Tennery, Dietitian Aide, University Hospital, increase salary from \$90 to \$100 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

Frances Tennis, Waitress, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$70 to \$75 per month, effective February 1, 1950.

Jess J. Woodrome, Painter, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$180 to \$190 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

B. P. Wright, Plumber, University Hospitals, increase salary from \$185 to \$190 per month, effective March 1, 1950.

RESIGNATIONS:

Gordon W. Buffington, Student Assistant, University Hospitals, resignation effective January 1, 1950.

Gladys Campbell, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, resigned February 28, 1950.

Ozon Colwell, Orderly, University Hospitals, resigned February 10, 1950.

Jacqueline Foster, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, resigned February 7, 1950.

Arlene Grace, Nurse Aide, Polio Packer, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Jessie N. Hedges, Laundress, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Patsy Ruth Hile, Secretary, University Hospitals, resigned February 28, 1950

Tillman Horton, Orderly, University Hospitals, resigned February 17, 1950.

William Hulen, Technician, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Gladys Kaney, Laundress, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Myrtle M. Lassiter, General Staff Nurse, University Hospitals, resigned February 28, 1950.

Edith Marie Lovette, General Staff Nurse, University Hospitals, resigned February 14, 1950.

Dr. Dick Lowry, Resident in Ear, Nose and Throat, University Hospitals, resigned February 28, 1950.

Emma Luckenbill, Nurse Aide, University Hospitals, resigned February 8, 1950.

Callie Moore, Housekeeper, University Hospitals, resigned January 22, 1950.

J. T. Palmer, Building Custodian, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Wanda Pipkin, Waitress, Pay Cafeteria, University Hospitals, resigned January 28, 1950.

Warren A. Ramsey, Laundryman, University Hospitals, resigned January 10, 1950.

Sadie Rogers, Cook's Helper, University Hospitals, resigned February 13, 1950.

Anna Shawnee, Maid, University Hospitals, resigned January 25, 1950.

Mary Tubbs, Aide, University Hospitals, resigned January 31, 1950.

Randel H. Tucker, Building Custodian, University Hospital, resigned January 28, 1950.

Connie M. Walls, Housekeeper, University Hospitals, resigned February 28, 1950.

LaVerne Williams, Nurse Aide, Polio Packer, University Hospitals, resigned December 31, 1949.

Theodore Worthington, Orderly, University Hospitals, resigned February 16, 1950.